
815 North Orlando Smith Road 
Oglesby, IL  61348-9692 

Board Meeting 
A G E N D A 

Wednesday, March 19, 2025 
Board Room 

4:30 p.m. 

NOTE: If you are unable to attend this meeting, or if you have questions regarding 
 the agenda, please call the President’s office, 224-0402. 



Tentative Board Committee Meetings 
Audit Finance Committee: January, April, June, and November 
Planning Committee: February and October 
Facilities Committee: May and August 
Closed Session Meeting Minutes Committee: June and December 

Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities 
for students and our community by providing access to affordable, 

high-quality higher education and lifelong learning. 

BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 

January 

February 
Authorize Budget Preparation 
Reduction in Force 
Tuition and Fee Review 
Three-year Financial Forecast 
Tenure Recommendations 
ICCTA Award Nominations 

(Alumnus, Student Trustee, Ethical) 

March 
Reappointment of Non-tenured Faculty 
President’s Evaluation 
ICCTA Award Nominations 

(FT/PT Faculty, Student Essay, 
Business/Industry) 

April 
Board of Trustees Election (odd years) 
Organization of Board (odd years) 

May 
Budget Adjustments 
President’s Contract Review 
Vice Presidents’ Contract Renewals 

June 
Authorization of Continued Payment for 
     Standard Operating Expenses 
College Insurance 

July 
Tentative Budget 

a. Resolution Approving Tentative Budget
b. Authorization to Publish Notice of

Public Hearing
RAMP Reports 
Athletic Insurance 

August 
Budget 

a. Public Hearing
b. Resolution to Adopt Budget

September 
Protection, Health, and Safety Projects 
Cash Farm Lease 
Approval of College Calendar (even years) 

October 
Authorize Preparation of Levy 
Audit Report 
IVCC Foundation Update 

November 
Adopt Tentative Tax Levy 
Student Fall/Employee Demographic Reports 

December 
Adopt Tax Levy 
Schedule of Regular Meeting Dates and Times 

MISSION STATEMENT 



ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Wednesday, March 19, 2025 – 4:30 p.m. – Board Room (C-307) 
 
The meeting can be accessed by the public at link https://ivcc-edu.zoom.us/j/81228555729 
and meeting ID number 812 2855 5729. For dial-in, call 1 (312) 626-6799. 
 

A G E N D A 
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Moment of Silence 

4. Roll Call 

5. Approval of Agenda 

6. Public Comment 

7. Tenure Recommendations (Pages 1-11) 

 7.1 Lyndsey Beetz (Pages 1-6) 

 7.2 Scott Fox (Pages 7-11) 

8. Recognition of Emeritus/Emerita Status Recipients 

9. Closed Session – 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, 
or dismissal of specific employees of the public body; 2) pending or imminent litigation;  
and 3) closed session minutes. 

10. Consent Agenda Items – Anyone may remove an item from the consent item list by 
requesting the chair to do so. Items removed will be discussed and voted upon immediately 
following passage of the remaining consent items. 

10.1 Approval of Minutes – February 5, 2025 Audit Finance Committee Meeting,  
 February 19, 2025 Board Meeting, and March 6, 2025 Facilities Committee  
 Meeting (Pages 12-22) 

10.2 Approval of Bills - $2,908,926.70 

10.2.1 Education Fund - $2,479,103.66 

10.2.2 Operations and Maintenance Fund - $154,043.72 

10.2.3 Operations and Maintenance (Restricted) - $ 37,105.07 

10.2.4 Auxiliary Fund - $150,617.31 

10.2.5 Restricted Fund - $20,844.67 

10.2.6 Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund – $66,569.87 

10.2.7 Grants, Loans, and Scholarship Fund - $642.40 

10.3 Treasurer’s Report (Pages 23-45) 

10.3.1 Financial Highlights (Pages 24-25) 

10.3.2 Balance Sheet (Pages 26-27) 

https://ivcc-edu.zoom.us/j/81228555729


IVCC Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 
March 19, 2025 
Page 2 
 

10.3.3 Summary of FY25 Budget by Fund (Pages 28-36) 

10.3.4 Budget to Actual by Budget Officers (Page 37) 

10.3.5 Statement of Cash Flows (Page 38) 

10.3.6 Investment Status Report (Pages 39-43) 

10.3.7 Disbursements - $5,000 or more (Pages 44-45) 

10.4 Personnel – Stipends for Pay Periods Ending February 8, 2025, February 22, 2025, 
 and Part-Time Faculty and Staff Appointments February 2025 (Pages 46-50) 

11. Student Trustee’s Report 

12. President’s Report 

13. Committee Reports 

14. Approval – Master Plan – February 2025 (Page 51) 

15. Staff Appointment – Amber Fox, Dean of Natural Sciences and Business (Pages 52-53) 

16. Faculty Resignation – Dr. Sammy Kumar, CNA Instructor (Page 54) 

17. Potential Approval – Tenure Extension Request 

18. Approval – Board Policy 02.23 Residency (Pages 55-57) 

19. Approval – Board Policy 06.21 Non-Discrimination/Anti-Harassment (Pages 58-59) 

20. Approval – Board Policy 06.22 Prohibiting Sex-Based Misconduct (Pages 60-62) 

21. Approval – Removal of Board Policy 06.13 Sex Discrimination (Page 63) 

22. Items for Information (Pages 64-75) 

22.1 ICCTA 2025 Business/Industry Business Partnership Award, OSF Healthcare 
(Page 64) 

22.2 ICCTA 2025 Gregg Chadwick Student Service Scholarship, Ashton Watkins 
(Page 65) 

22.3 ICCTA 2025 Outstanding Full-Time Faculty Member Award, Samantha  
Whiteaker (Page 66) 

22.4 ICCTA 2025 Outstanding Adjunct Faculty Member Award, Donald Leynaud 
(Page 67) 

22.5 Staff Appointment – Susan Weber, Accounting Clerk-Payables/Cashier (Page 68) 
22.6 Staff Appointment – John Bratkovich, Custodian (Page 69) 
22.7 Reappointment of Non-Tenured Faculty for 2025/2026 (Page 70) 
22.8 Change Order for CTC Technology Project (Page 71) 
22.9 Memorandum of Understanding – Tri-County Council of Opportunities (Pages 

72-73) 
22.10 Letter of Understanding – Heather Seghi, Faculty Tenure Agreement (Page 74) 



IVCC Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 
March 19, 2025 
Page 3 
 

22.11 Employee Separations Report (Page 75) 
23. Trustee Comment 

24. Approve and Retain – Closed Session Minutes 

25. Other 

26. Adjournment 



Action Item 7.1 

 
Faculty Tenure Recommendation – Lyndsey Beetz, Dental Assisting/Hygiene 
Instructor 

Dr. Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Heather Seghi, Dean of Health 
Professions have completed their evaluations of Lyndsey Beetz, Dental Assisting/Hygiene 
Instructor. The tenure recommendation is attached. 

 

 

 

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Lyndsey Beetz, Dental 
Assisting/Hygiene Instructor, as presented. 

 

KPI 5:  District Population Served 

 

1



 
 
TO:   Tracy Morris, President 

FROM:  Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
  Heather Seghi, Dean of Health Professions 

DATE:  March 5, 2025 

SUBJECT:  Tenure Recommendation for Lyndsey Beetz, Dental Instructor 

 

Lyndsey Beetz began her tenure track position at IVCC in 2022.  She pursued a Bachelor of Science in 
Dental Hygiene at Southern Illinois University and earned an M.Ed. in 2023.  She lead the development 
of IVCC’s Dental Hygiene program which received CODA approval and accreditation in February 
2024. 
 
Dr. Trier and Dean Seghi are both in agreement that Lyndsey Beetz meets the requirements for tenure 
outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation System. 
 
Additional information on Ms. Beetz’ accomplishments can be found in the attached form. 
 

MEMORANDUM 

2



3



4



5



6



Action Item 7.2 

 
Faculty Tenure Recommendation – Scott Fox, Manufacturing Instructor 

Dr. Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs and Rebecca Zamora, Dean of 
Workforce Development have completed their evaluations of Scott Fox, Manufacturing 
Instructor.  The tenure recommendation is attached. 

 

 

 

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends the approval of tenure for Scott Fox, Manufacturing 
Instructor, as presented. 

 

KPI 5:  District Population Served 

 

7



 
 
TO:   Tracy Morris, President 

FROM:  Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
  Rebecca Zamora, Dean of Workforce Development 

DATE:  March 5, 2025 

SUBJECT:  Tenure Recommendation for Scott Fox, Manufacturing 

 

Scott Fox began his tenure track position at IVCC in 2022.  He is an IVCC success story having earned 
an AAS in Manufacturing and an AAS in Engineering Technology.  Mr. Fox is employed at LCN as 
well which serves to benefit his students with the most current industry knowledge.  He holds 
certifications in Machinist and Tool and Die from IVCC along with certifications in Motor Vehicle Air 
Conditioning refrigerant recovery from ESCO Institute. 
 
Dr. Trier and Dean Zamora are both in agreement that Scott Fox meets the requirements for tenure 
outlined in the IVCC Guidelines for Non-tenured Faculty Evaluation System. 
 
Additional information on Mr. Fox’s accomplishments can be found in the attached form. 
 

MEMORANDUM 

8



9



10



11



 
_____     ______    _____ 
  JKM       EJS        AMS  
 

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees 

 
Audit Finance Committee Meeting 

February 5, 2025 
 

The Audit Finance Committee of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College 
District No. 513 met at 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, February 5, 2025 in the Board Room (C307) at 
Illinois Valley Community College. 
 
Committee Members Jay K. McCracken, Committee Chair 
Physically Present: Maureen O. Rebholz 
 
Committee Members  
Virtually Present: Amy L. Boyles 
 
Committee Members   
Absent:  
 
Board Members  
Physically Present:  
  
Others Physically  Tracy Morris, President 
Present:  Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance 

 Mark Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services 
 Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
 Eric Johnson, Controller 

 
Others Virtually  
Present:  
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Mr. McCracken. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mr. Volker noted he recently attended a Kendall County meeting of serval planning organizations. 
He came away with an appreciation for those that volunteer to do public service. 
 
THREE-YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN (FY26-FY28) 
The Financial Plan for fiscal years 2026-2028 was highlighted. Ms. Ross thanked President’s 
Council for helping lead the process as well as Justin Denton, Eric Johnson, and Nikki Van Nielen 
for providing information. 
 
Ms. Ross reviewed the operating revenues for the Education and Operations and Maintenance 
funds for the next three years. The overall operating revenues show a 1.98 percent increase for 
FY2026 from the FY2025 budget; FY2027 is a 2.88 percent increase from FY2026; and FY2028 
is a 2.68 percent increase from FY2027. The major sources of revenue for these funds consist of 
property taxes, tuition, and state funding. Ms. Ross reviewed the assumptions for each of these 
funding sources. 
 

12



Audit Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
February 5, 2025 
Page 2  
 

   
_____     _____     _____ 
 JKM       EJS         AMS 
  

The overall operating expenditures show a 15.88 percent increase for FY2026 from the FY2026 
budget; FY2027 is a 9.98 percent decrease from FY2026; and FY2028 is a 2.81percent decrease 
from FY2027. The biggest contributing factor to the increase and decrease is capital. Ms. Ross 
reviewed expenditure assumptions for each expenditure category.  
 
The FY2026-FY2028 Financial Plan includes a total of $19.9 million in capital expenditures 
through grants, PHS projects, and strategic fund balance reserve spending for master plan projects 
previously identified as priorities through the Board of Trustees Facilities Committee. 
 
TUITION AND FEE RECOMMENDATION DISCUSSION 
Ms. Ross stated the recommendation is a FY2026 increase to tuition and fees by $6.00, from 
$140.00 to $146.00 per credit hour. These would be a $4.00 increase to tuition and $2.00 to the 
technology fee. The Financial Plan assumes incremental increases in FY2027 and FY2028 as well. 
 
COURSE FEES/ADJUSTMENTS 
Dr. Trier stated there are currently 293 active courses with approved course fees. The 
recommendation includes changes to 182 course fees. There were 164 increases, 4 decreases, 13 
new course fees, and the reinstatement of 1 course fee after the Ealy Childhood “ECACE” Grant 
is no longer available to cover the course fee. Course fees primarily cover consumables and 
increases are in line with the cost of materials. 
 
FUND BALANCE DISCUSSION 
Ms. Ross provided an update on where the fund balance reserves stand as of June 30, 2024. 
President’s Council had a presentation from DKA on estimated project costs and timeframe. The 
Board Facilities Committee will be meeting on March 6 which will include sharing renderings for 
the spaces and review the draft of the Master Plan. An updated Capital Project and Funding Plan 
was reviewed. 
 
OTHER 
Dr. Rebholz commented on a great conversation with a former student on her experiences at IVCC.  
Mr. McCracken commented what an outstanding job everyone is doing and it is reflective of 
getting the right people in positions to make it happen. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. McCracken declared the meeting adjourned at 6:17 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jay K. McCracken 
Audit Finance Committee Chair 
 
 
______________________________  _________________________________ 
Everett J. Solon, Board Chair    Angela M. Stevenson, Board Secretary 

13



______    ______ 
 EJS         AMS   
     

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees 

 
Minutes of Regular Meeting 

February 19, 2025 
 

The Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513 convened a regular 
session at 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, February 19, 2025 in the Board Room (C307) at Illinois Valley 
Community College. 
 
Members Physically Present: Everett J. Solon, Chair 
 Jay K. McCracken, Vice Chair 
 Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary 
 Amy L. Boyles 
 Maureen O. Rebholz 
 Emma J. Garretson, Student Trustee 
   
Members Virtually Present: Rebecca Donna 
 
Members Telephonically Present:  
 
Members Absent: Jane E. Goetz 
    
Others Physically Present: Tracy Morris, President 
 Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance 
 Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
 Mark Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services 
 Mary Beth Herron, Director of Human Resources 
 Walt Zukowski, Attorney 
 Mike Zywica, Attorney 
 
Others Virtually Present:  
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
A moment of silence was held to remember Carina Kapraun of Astoria, who was an Ameren 
employee who had been assisting with the annexation of the Ag building; Jerome “Jerry” Baness 
of New Mexico, who was a former instructor, Business Department Chair, and golf coach; Linda 
Olivero of Springfield, sister of Luke Olivero from our Adult Education program; Tony Ajster of 
LaSalle, former welding instructor for the Area Vocational Center and IVCC; Jeff Hayden of Peru, 
husband of retired Executive Assistant to the President Jeanne Hayden; Robert “Bob” Kessel, 
uncle of Steve Mazzorana from the IT department; Robin Sienkiewicz of LaSalle, mother of Sara 
Legrenzi, nursing faculty; and John Karr of Batavia, father of IT Support Lead Kyle Carr. 
 
Trustee Rebecca Donna was determined to be eligible to participate in tonight’s meeting 
electronically in accordance with the Open Meetings Act and Board Policy. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the agenda.  
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 

14



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
February 19, 2025 
Page 2 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
TENURE RECOMMENDATION – DR. JONATHAN HUBBELL, CRIMINAL JUSTICE 
It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the tenure recommendation 
for Dr. Jonathan Hubbell, Criminal Justice Instructor, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
TENURE RECOMMENDATION – SARA LEGRENZI, NURSING INSTRUCTOR 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve the tenure 
recommendation for Sara Legrenzi, Nursing Instructor, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
TENURE RECOMMENDATION – DR. CAMDEN PARKS, CHEMISTRY INSTRUCTOR 
It was moved by Ms. Garretson and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve the tenure 
recommendation for Dr. Camden Parks, Chemistry Instructor, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
TENURE RECOMMENDATION – SHANNON SLAIGHT-BROWN, ART INSTRUCTOR 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve the tenure 
recommendation for Shannon Slaight-Brown, Art Instructor, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
TENURE RECOMMENDATION – DR. JENNIFER TIMMERS, AGRICULTURE 
INSTRUCTOR 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the tenure 
recommendation for Dr. Jennifer Timmers, Agriculture Instructor, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
Mr. Solon requested a motion and a roll call vote at 4:49 p.m. to enter into a closed session to 
discuss: 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of 
specific employees of the public body; 2) pending or imminent litigation; and 3) closed session 
minutes.   
It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to enter into a closed session. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
The Board entered closed session at 4:51 p.m. 
 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Dr. Boyles to return to the regular meeting. 

15



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
February 19, 2025 
Page 3 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
The regular meeting resumed at 5:12 p.m. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve the consent agenda, 
as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
The following items were approved in the consent agenda: 
 
Approval of Minutes – January 15, 2025 Board Meeting and Planning Committee Meeting. 
 
Approval of Bills - $1,997,196.84 
Education Fund - $1,641,901.80; Operations and Maintenance Fund - $115,339.77; Operations 
and Maintenance (Restricted) - $79,821.32; Auxiliary Fund - $59,951.70; Restricted Fund - 
$24,120.28; Audit Fund - $7,333.00; Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund - $68,311.74; 
Grants, Loans, and Scholarship Fund - $417.23. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
 
Personnel 
Approved stipends for pay periods ending January 11, 2025, January 25, 2025 and Part-Time 
Faculty and Staff Appointments for January 2025. 
 
STUDENT TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
Ms. Garretson highlighted Black History Month events including “How Hip Hop and Rap Made 
It to the Suburbs”; The Chicago Black Renaissance History; the annual Soul Food Buffet; and 
Race and Racism in Baseball. The Art Club hosted a Valentine’s Day art sale with handmade items 
by art students and faculty. A Board Candidate Forum is scheduled on March 5 and candidates 
Bill Hunt, Marlene Moshage, and Todd Volker will participate. The softball team hosted its annual 
softball clinic with 136 participants from 2nd to 8th grade. Student Activities and Career Services 
will host the annual Etiquette Dinner on Monday, February 24. 
 
PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
Dr. Morris highlighted the great work done by our Facilities team keeping the parking lots and 
sidewalks clear during bad weather. The next phase of branding in the gym and the Dental Health 
Center are underway. 
 
Danica Scoma was awarded a Benjamin A. Gilman International Scholarship, which pays 
undergraduates up to $5,000 to covers costs of studying abroad. Ron Groleau recently retired with 
a campus reception held in his honor. 
 

16



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
February 19, 2025 
Page 4 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Welding Information Sessions are underway; scholarship applications are now open, using the 
new software; Colleague migration is in progress; the IVCC Wind Ensemble was invited to 
perform as a special guest at the Mendota Symphony Concert, and a Junior High Band Festival, 
led by Phil Whaley, was held on February 16. 
 
Food bank deliveries now come directly to campus and quarter 2 data shows 536 visits, 196 
unduplicated households, 551 children in the households, and the total number in the households 
was 2,039. The Medical Assisting program received its initial accreditation. The Open Pathway 
Quality Initiative Report received for the work done by the Student Success Academy. IVCC 
received a $6,000 grant from the Illinois Fabricator’s Association to offset the costs of summer 
teen career exploration camps.  
 
Dr. Morris highlighted the documentary by Reid Tomasson, IVCC alumni, entitled “Thank You 
Jim Jewell for the Use of Your Piano” and rehearsals for the Spring theatre production of “Hello 
Dolly” are underway. 
 
Monthly updates included the final Spring 2025 enrollment update showing a headcount increase 
of .80% and 10.39% in credit hours compared to Spring 2024. We are at 111.46 % of budgeted 
hours and 112.14% of actual prior 10th day hours. We are at 109.3% of the total annual budgeted 
credit hours. The Edible Car Contest will be held on February 26. The Hispanic Partnership 
Council is sponsoring Immigration Attorney Sara Dady, who will speak about immigration rights 
tomorrow evening at Mendota High School. Dr. Morris provided a follow-up from the ACCT 
Legislative Summit she recently attended. Highlights included key takeaways and legislative 
priorities for the ACCT. Highlights of State legislative priorities included Applied Bachelor’s 
Degrees (Senate Bill 2482 and House Bill 3717); Dual Credit (House Bill 3516); and common 
course numbering. Other bills to watch include Open Meeting Act (House Bill 26) and Veterans 
Grant (Senate Bill 1353). 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
None 
 
RESOLUTION DESIGNATING THE FISCAL YEAR 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Ms. Garretson to adopt the resolution 
designating the fiscal year be from July 1, 2025 to June 30, 2026. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
It was moved by Dr. Donna and seconded by Ms. Garretson to approve the budget calendar, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
TUITION ADJUSTMENT 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve an increase to tuition 
and fees by $6.00, from $140.00 to $146.00 per credit hour beginning with the summer 2025 
semester. 

17



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
February 19, 2025 
Page 5 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
Mr. McCracken stated the work done by Ms. Ross and her team was very thorough and a balanced 
approach. Dr. Rebholz stated there has been great communication with the Board during the 
process. Ms. Stevenson noted IVCC’s tuition is still lower than 5 of the 6 in our peer group. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve the dual credit rate 
structure of 75 percent of the approved tuition rate for IVCC instructors, $30.00 for high school 
instructor-led courses and waiver programs as listed. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
COURSE FEES/ADJUSTMENTS 
It was moved by Ms. Garretson and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve changing 182 course 
fees: 164 increases, 4 decreases, 13 new course fees, and reinstatement of 1 course fee after an 
Early Childhood Education “ECACE” Grant is no longer available to cover the course fee. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL – AGENCY RELATIONSHIP CERTIFICATE RESOLUTION 
It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the Agency Relationship 
Certificate and the included resolution, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
Mr. Zukowski left the meeting at 5:40 p.m. 
 
APPROVAL – TRANSFER OF FUNDS TO CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD TRUST 
ACCOUNT 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Ms. Garretson to approve transferring $378,225 
to a Capital Development Board trust account at Midland States Bank to cover anticipated costs 
for Project No. 810-045-021 to begin the project specifications. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
PURCHASE REQUEST – TRUCK DRIVER TRAINING SIMULATION LAB 
EQUIPMENT 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to authorize the purchase of 
simulators, training programs and support/extended warranty services for the Truck Driver 
Training program from Virage Simulation, using the Taking Back the Trades Grant through the 
Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing Group at a cost of $291,621.40 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 

18



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
February 19, 2025 
Page 6 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

PURCHASE REQUEST – REPLACEMENT OF VARIOUS TECHNOLOGY 
COMPONENTS 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve the proposal from 
the IT Department for purchase of the above listed equipment at a cost of $186,200 plus any 
imposed tariffs. It will be funded out the FY2025 IT budget. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL – DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – MARY SUE MYERS, 
FACULTY EMERITA 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Ms. Garretson to approve Mary Sue Myers for 
the designation of Faculty Emerita, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL – DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – DR. MARY MARGARET 
WEEG, FACULTY EMERITA 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve Dr. Mary Margaret 
Weeg for the designation of Faculty Emerita, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL – DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – GENE MONTGOMERY, 
ADJUNCT FACULTY EMERITUS 
It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Ms. Garretson to approve Gene Montgomery for the 
designation of Adjunct Faculty Emeritus, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL – DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – JEANNE HAYDEN, STAFF 
EMERITA 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve Jeanne Hayden for 
the designation of Staff Emerita, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL – DESIGNATION OF EMERITUS STATUS – LOU BORIO, 
ADMINISTRATOR EMERITUS 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve Lou Borio for the designation 
of Administrator Emeritus, as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
  

19



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
February 19, 2025 
Page 7 
 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

APPROVAL – BOARD PROCEDURE 01.15.00 BOARD TRAVEL, CONFERENCE, AND 
MEETING EXPENSES 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the Board Procedure, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
FACULTY APPOINTMENT – KETURAH HAFERKAMP, ENGLISH INSTRUCTOR 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Ms. Garretson to approve the appointment of 
Keturah Haferkamp as English Instructor effective August 14, 2025 at Step D-10, an annualized 
salary of $66,620.00 on the 2025/2026 faculty salary scale. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
Mr. Solon pointed out the information items on pages 103-119 of the Board book. 
 
TRUSTEE COMMENT 
Dr. Boyles thanked Dr. Morris for her efforts and for being proactive with potential changes at the 
federal level. Dr. Boyles stated we need to be proactive but not panic as any changes will take 
time. 
 
Mr. McCracken expressed his appreciation to Dr. Morris for taking the initiative to go to the ACCT 
conference and taking part in the discussions with legislators. 
 
CLOSED SESSION MINUTES 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Ms. Garretson to approve and retain the closed 
session minutes of the January 15, 2025 Board Meeting. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Garretson. Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, 
Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, Mr. McCracken, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
 
OTHER 
None 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Solon declared the meeting adjourned at 5:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________    _____________________________ 
Everett J. Solon, Board Chair     Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary 

20



 
 

_____     ______    _____ 
  JKM       EJS        AMS   

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees 

 
Facilities Committee Meeting 

March 6, 2025 
 

The Facilities Committee of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College District 
No. 513 met at 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, March 6, 2025 in the Board Room (C307) at Illinois Valley 
Community College. 
 
Committee Members Jay K. McCracken 
Physically Present:  
  
 
Committee Members Angela M. Stevenson 
Absent:  
 
Committee Members Maureen O. Rebholz 
Virtually Present:  
 
Other Board Members  
Physically Present:  
 
Others Physically Tracy Morris, President 
Present: Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance 
 Mary Beth Herron, Director of Human Resources 
 Eric Johnson, Controller 
 
Others Virtually Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
Present:  
  
Mr. McCracken called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mr. Volker stated he has enjoyed hearing IVCC stories from community members. They could fit 
well into the IVCC’s 100th anniversary efforts. 
 
MASTER PLAN 
Ms. Ross highlighted the purpose and process used to develop the draft plan. Existing conditions 
and program needs were investigated and analyzed. Planning objectives driving the planning 
process include campus image, campus life space, learning-centered environment, campus-wide 
wayfinding and organization, technology and connectivity, and framework for growth. Program 
needs were then prioritized within the planning objectives. Ms. Ross reviewed the draft Master 
Plan for the next 5-10 years, which includes proposed improvements and upgrades for, the 
development of new facilities and existing campus facilities identified to respond to program needs 
Ms. Ross also shared conceptual cost estimates. 
  

21



IVCC Board Facilities Committee Minutes 
March 6, 2025 
Page 2 
 

_____     ______    _____ 
  JKM       EJS        AMS  

2025 CAMPUS RENOVATIONS 
Ms. Ross presented an update on campus renovations including floor plan and architect renderings 
from Demonica Kemper Architects (DKA) on the following: 

• Microbiology classroom and lab 
• Upgrades to Food Service Corridor 
• Assessment Center 
• Distance Learning Classrooms 

 
The campus renovations timeline and the cost estimation and funding sources for each project were 
reviewed.  
 
AG BUILDING UPDATE 
Dr. Morris stated the City of Oglesby sent proposed changes to the Annexation Agreement late 
this afternoon. The administration needs time to review the document but there are concerns about 
new proposed changes made to the agreement. 
 
OTHER 
Mr. McCracken commended the work being done by all and the results being positive changes and 
an outstanding use of funds. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. McCracken declared the meeting adjourned at 6:02 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
________________________________    
Jay K. McCracken 
Facilities Committee      
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________  
Everett J. Solon, Board Chair    Angela M. Stevenson, Board Secretary  
  

22



 

 
 
 
 
 

DISTRICT NO. 513 

 
 
 

TREASURER'S REPORT  

February 2025 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kathy Ross 
V.P. for Business Services and Finance/Treasurer 

 
Eric Johnson 

Controller 

23



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS – February 2025 

Revenues 
 As of February 28, Spring 2025 credit hours are 23,526.5 or 10.71 percent more than Spring 

2024. Total credit hours for the fiscal year are 51,225 or 109.6 percent of the budgeted 46,740 
credit hours.  Priority Registration for Summer and Fall 2025 is set to begin March 27. 

 Total tax collections as of February 28 are $14,937,875 of the $14,924,550 tax levy.    
 Corporate Personal Property Replacement Tax (CPPRT) receipts as of February 28 were 

$1,166,937, or 38.1 percent of the budgeted $3,065,775.  
 Investment income as of February 28 is $949,877 or 87.2 percent of the budgeted $1,089,550.  

Investment income compared to this time last year is $136k less.  Overall yield comparison is 
4.059 as of February 28 compared to a year ago, 4.611.  

 
Expenses 

 Overall, expenses are running at 61.3 percent of budget.  
 Facilities includes $115,500 annual rent for the Ottawa Center and the $126,412 for the 

emergency repair for the boilers but is currently at 40.3 percent of budget due to the delayed 
start for the Ag. building.   

 ATOMAT grant is running at 101 percent; this is a multi-year grant through September 2026 for 
$540,000.  The budget of $226,472 was based on expenditures that were anticipated during the 
current fiscal year.  Since the grant year runs October 1 through September 30, the current fiscal 
year expenditures may exceed the fiscal year budget allocation but not the total for the grant. 

 PATH grant is running at 106.3 percent.  The budget of $250,000 was based on anticipated 
expenditures and award allocation.  The grant allocation received was $312,448. 

 Financial Aid is running at 123.3 percent; Fall disbursement of financial aid was in September.  
Spring disbursement was in February.  The increase in credit hours translated to an increase in 
Pell grants disbursed. 

 Athletics is running at 78.6 percent of budget due to increased travel costs. 
 Campus Security is running at 73 percent of budget due to additional shifts at Ottawa Center. 

 
Protection, Health & Safety Projects 

 The D201 project is in substantial completion.  We are down to one outstanding item.  We are 
waiting on an updated schedule to get these completed. 

 The lighting portion of the lighting and security camera project is completed.  The security 
camera portion of the project is in substantial completion. A new server was installed in 
October.  Vendor was on campus in late November to finalize the security camera project. The 
security team and facilities evaluated the system. Repairs were completed on a few cameras. 
The vendor needs to finalize system set-up sometime in March. 

 The salt shed was completed in February. 
 
Other Building, Grant, and IT Work 

 Design work is complete for the Agricultural Educational Center. We are continuing to work 
through the permit and annexation paperwork with the City of Oglesby.  We submitted all bid 
paperwork and additional requested information to the EDA for approval. We will be working 
with NCICG to submit an extension for the EDA grant. 

 The Bluestone design team have incorporated relevant anecdotes local to the Midwest into the 
displays and the design phase is nearing completion. We met with Paul Bluestone on January 

24



13th.  We received final copies to review.  We have provided edits and approved Panel #2.  We 
are currently reviewing Panel #1 and hope to provide any additional edits and approval in 
March. The construction phase of the panels will begin after those final approvals.   

 Two rooms (building J and CTC) have had their distance learning equipment installed!  The order 
has been placed for the furniture for CTC distance learning room. A meeting with the vendor 
was held on February 7th to evaluate the Ottawa Center room and the huddle room equipment 
for Counseling.  These rooms will be completed after the Spring semester classes are complete. 
All other rooms in the older part of the College will need facility and IT work to prepare the 
rooms for the distance learning equipment.  Renovations are slated to begin next May.   

25



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Combined Balance Sheet

All Fund Types and Account Groups
February 28, 2025

Unaudited

Governmental Funds Types
Proprietary
Fund Types

Fiduciary
Fund Types Account Groups

General
Special

Revenue
Debt

Service Enterprise
Trust and

Agency

General
Fixed
Assets

General
Long-Term

Debt

Total
(Memorandum

Only)

Assets and Other Debits
Cash and cash equivalents 2,889,090$           6,216,955$           247,219$               (207,192)$             1,213,167$           -$                        -$                        10,359,240            
Investments 16,901,143           6,183,785             663,961                 -                          1,044,014             -                          -                          24,792,903            

Receivables -                          
   Property Taxes 12,167,383           2,751,315             -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          14,918,698            
   Governmental claims -                          438,537                 -                          -                          500                         -                          -                          439,037                  
   Tuition and fees 19,184                   -                          -                          420,692                 -                          -                          -                          439,876                  
   Lease 244,494                 
   CCHC Dividend 2,785,051             

Due from other funds 5,756,731             52                           -                          -                          31,281                   -                          -                          5,788,064              
Due to/from student groups -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Bookstore inventories -                          -                          -                          122,218                 -                          -                          -                          122,218                  

Other assets 209,293                 173,167                 2,943                     -                          -                          -                          -                          385,403                  
Deferred Outflows -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          652,164                 652,164                  
Fixed assets - net -                          -                          -                          25,126                   -                          62,734,044           -                          62,759,169            

Other debits -                          
   Amount available in -                          
     Debt Service Fund -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
   Amount to be provided -                          
     to retire debt -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          12,962,465           12,962,465            

Total assets and deferred outflows 40,972,370$         15,763,811$         914,123$               360,843$               2,288,962$           62,734,044$         13,614,629$         136,648,782$       

26



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Combined Balance Sheet

All Fund Types and Account Groups
February 28, 2025

Unaudited

Governmental Funds Types
Proprietary
Fund Types

Fiduciary
Fund Types Account Groups

General
Special

Revenue
Debt

Service Enterprise
Trust and

Agency

General
Fixed
Assets

General
Long-Term

Debt

Total
(Memorandum

Only)
Liabilities
Accounts payable 2,832                     -                          -                          -                          7,857                     -                          -                          10,689                    
Accrued salaries & benefits 2,031,696             31,292                   -                          16,309                   -                          -                          -                          2,079,297              
Post-retirement benefits & other 140,956                 128,701                 -                          1,872                     -                          -                          -                          271,529                  
Unclaimed property 6,193                     -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          6,193                      
Due to other funds 54,816                   3,317,490             -                          134,653                 2,281,105             -                          -                          5,788,064              0                       
Due to student groups/deposits -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Current Portion-Capital Lease -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          204,184                 204,184                  
Current Portion-SBITA 652,758                 652,758                  
Accrued Interest -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          41,822                   41,822                    
Capital Lease Payable -                          -                          -                          131                         -                          -                          514,412                 514,543                  
SBITA Payable -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          1,253,522             1,253,522              
Deferred inflows -                          -                          
   Property taxes 6,086,088             1,376,187             -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          7,462,275              
   Tuition and fees 18,113                   -                          -                          43,918                   -                          -                          -                          62,031                    
   Grants -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
    Lease Receivable 244,494                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          244,494                  

OPED -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          6,335,504             6,335,504              
   OPEB long term debt -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          4,612,427             4,612,427              
Total Liabilities 8,585,187             4,853,671             -                          196,883                 2,288,962             -                          13,614,629           29,539,332            

Net Position/Net Assets
Net investment in general fixed assets -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          62,734,044           -                          62,734,044            
Fund balance -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
   Reserved for restricted purposes -                          10,910,140           -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          10,910,140            
   Reserved for debt service -                          -                          914,123                 -                          -                          -                          -                          914,123                  
   Unreserved 32,387,183           -                          -                          163,960                 -                          -                          -                          32,551,143            

-                          
Total liabilities and net position 40,972,370$         15,763,811$         914,123$               360,843$               2,288,962$           62,734,044$         13,614,629$         136,648,782$       

27



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Summary of Fiscal Year 2025 Revenues & Expenditures by Fund

For the eight months ended February 28, 2025
Unaudited

Education
Fund

Operations
&

Maintenance
Fund

Operations &
Maintenance

Restricted
Fund

Debt
Service
Fund

Auxiliary
Enterprise

Fund

Restricted
Purposes

Fund

Working
Cash
Fund

Audit
Fund

Liability
Protection &
Settlement

Fund

Total
(Memorandum

Only)
Actual Revenue 22,003,626$      2,812,397$        1,213,086$        26,947$              1,306,135$        6,152,584$        154,912$            44,676$              1,573,071$        35,287,435$      
Actual Expenditures 16,287,325        2,241,488           557,503              643                     1,511,106           6,009,854           2,263                  44,000                1,005,177           27,659,360        
Other Financing Sources (Uses) (10,000)               -                      -                      -                      10,000                -                      -                      -                      -                      
Excess (deficit) of Revenues and
   other financing sources over
   expenditures and other financing
   uses 5,706,300           570,909              655,583              26,304                (204,971)            152,730              152,649              676                     567,894              7,628,074           

Fund balances July 1, 2024  22,022,336        4,131,550           2,797,014           887,818              401,906              175,668              5,326,995           41,637                995,379              36,780,303        

Fund balances February 28, 2025 27,728,636$      4,702,459$        3,452,597$        914,122$            196,935$            328,398$            5,479,644$        42,313$              1,563,273$        44,408,377$      

28



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Summary of  Fiscal Year 2025 Revenues & Expenditures by Fund

For the eight months ended February 25, 2025
Unaudited

2/28/2025
Annual Budget

FY2025
Actual/Budget

66.7% 2/29/2024
Annual Budget

FY2024
Actual/Budget

66.7%
EDUCATION FUND REVENUES
Local Government Sources:

Current Taxes 10,445,576$          10,777,223$          96.9% 9,603,008$            9,820,615$            97.8%
Corporate Personal Property Replacement Tax 991,896                 2,665,550              37.2% 1,529,968              2,716,250              56.3%
Tax Increment Financing Distributions 253,774                 443,700                 57.2% 345,152                 440,000                 78.4%

Total Local Government 11,691,246            13,886,473            84.2% 11,478,128            12,976,865            88.5%

State Government:
ICCB Credit Hour Grant 1,371,557              1,962,850              69.9% 1,336,061              1,832,250              72.9%
Equalization Grant 33,333                   50,000                   66.7% 33,333                   52,500                   63.5%
Career/Technical Education  Formula Grant 241,553                 237,699                 101.6% 233,038                 227,000                 102.7%
Other -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Statement Government 1,646,443              2,250,549              73.2% 1,602,432              2,111,750              75.9%

Federal Government
PELL Administrative Fees 670                         8,000                      8.4% 310                         7,950                      3.9%

Total Federal Government 670                         8,000                      8.4% 310                         7,825                      4.0%

Student Tuition and Fees:
Tuition 6,950,198              6,480,435              107.2% 6,204,218              6,189,780              100.2%
Fees 947,786                 914,982                 103.6% 778,469                 843,315                 92.3%

Total Tuition and Fees 7,897,984              7,395,417              106.8% 6,982,687              7,033,095              99.3%

Other Sources:
Public Service Revenue 177,369                 302,472                 58.6% 149,484                 256,050                 58.4%
Other Sources: 589,912                 795,302                 74.2% 598,200                 311,884                 191.8%

Total Other Sources 767,282                 1,097,774              69.9% 747,684                 567,934                 131.6%

TOTAL EDUCATION FUND REVENUE 22,003,626$          24,638,213$          89.3% 20,811,241$          22,697,469$          91.7%

EDUCATION FUND EXPENDITURES
Instruction:

Salaries 6,165,315              8,866,718$            69.5% 5,839,553              8,443,208$            69.2%
Employee Benefits 1,388,787              1,807,840              76.8% 1,351,978              1,680,112              80.5%
Contractual Services 84,039                   176,990                 47.5% 73,574                   114,182                 64.4%
Materials & Supplies 214,247                 542,413                 39.5% 243,797                 596,178                 40.9%
Conference & Meeting 50,002                   195,492                 25.6% 51,522                   178,713                 28.8%
Fixed Charges 67,871                   92,000                   73.8% 69,533                   92,000                   75.6%
Capital Outlay 8,950                      65,260                   0.0% 36,055                   87,811                   0.0%
Other 225                         -                          0.0% 351                         -                          0.0%

Total Instruction 7,979,436              11,746,713            67.9% 7,666,363              11,192,204            68.5%

29



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Summary of  Fiscal Year 2025 Revenues & Expenditures by Fund

For the eight months ended February 25, 2025
Unaudited

2/28/2025
Annual Budget

FY2025
Actual/Budget

66.7% 2/29/2024
Annual Budget

FY2024
Actual/Budget

66.7%

Academic Support:
Salaries 854,893                 1,363,864              62.7% 846,647                 1,350,414              62.7%
Employee Benefits 144,891                 220,352                 65.8% 147,767                 246,975                 59.8%
Contractual Services 56,697                   215,744                 26.3% 82,128                   175,990                 46.7%
Materials & Supplies 145,151                 315,314                 46.0% 109,383                 271,555                 40.3%
Conference & Meeting 2,358                      17,675                   13.3% 4,497                      20,095                   22.4%
Utilities 27,089                   25,500                   106.2% 18,300                   -                          #DIV/0!
Capital Outlay -                          -                          0.0% -                          24,495                   
Other -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          

Total Academic Support 1,231,079              2,158,449              57.0% 1,208,722              2,089,524              57.8%

Student Services:
Salaries 1,094,461              1,806,804              60.6% 982,441                 1,690,670              58.1%
Employee Benefits 262,742                 370,295                 71.0% 255,037                 419,426                 60.8%
Contractual Services 54,438                   105,992                 51.4% 30,390                   78,657                   38.6%
Materials & Supplies 47,907                   101,045                 47.4% 32,814                   106,390                 30.8%
Conference & Meeting 11,574                   57,062                   20.3% 10,908                   56,562                   19.3%
Utilities 353                         -                          0.0% 339                         -                          

Total Student Services 1,471,474              2,441,198              60.3% 1,311,929              2,351,705              55.8%

Public Services/Continuing Education:
Salaries 281,739                 438,148                 64.3% 272,025                 383,399                 71.0%
Employee Benefits 81,037                   106,609                 76.0% 85,922                   107,740                 79.7%
Contractual Services 208,668                 217,000                 96.2% 140,883                 128,000                 110.1%
Materials & Supplies 63,635                   85,200                   74.7% 61,062                   75,850                   80.5%
Conference & Meeting 6,614                      22,600                   29.3% 4,519                      17,800                   25.4%
Utilities -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          
Other -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          

Total Public Services/Continuing Education 641,693                 869,557                 73.8% 564,411                 712,789                 79.2%

Institutional Support:
Salaries 1,699,762              2,708,204              62.8% 1,500,151              2,440,995              61.5%
Employee Benefits 577,320                 731,323                 78.9% 546,044                 742,516                 73.5%
Contractual Services 1,177,812              1,565,879              75.2% 1,119,903              1,117,108              100.3%
Materials & Supplies 381,863                 509,230                 75.0% 348,971                 399,548                 87.3%
Conference & Meeting 29,795                   104,276                 28.6% 25,256                   90,614                   27.9%
Utilities 16,294                   10,500                   155.2% 12,421                   12,290                   101.1%
Capital Outlay 14,812                   878,000                 1.7% -                          281,223                 
Other 4,211                      25,500                   16.5% 4,465                      24,700                   18.1%
Provision for Contingency -                          162,129                 0.0% -                          152,506                 0.0%

Total Institutional Support 3,901,869              6,695,041              58.3% 3,557,210              5,261,500              67.6%

Scholarships, Grants and Waivers 1,061,775              1,080,500              98.3% 1,046,016              800,400                 130.7%

TOTAL EDUCATION FUND EXPENDITURES 16,287,325$          24,991,458$          65.2% 15,354,651$          22,408,122$          68.5%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - NET (10,000)$                43,245$                 -23.1% (10,000)$                (289,472)$              3.5%

30



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Summary of  Fiscal Year 2025 Revenues & Expenditures by Fund

For the eight months ended February 25, 2025
Unaudited

2/28/2025
Annual Budget

FY2025
Actual/Budget

66.7% 2/29/2024
Annual Budget

FY2024
Actual/Budget

66.7%
OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND REVENUES
Local Government Sources:

Current Taxes 1,717,771$            1,774,029$            96.8% 1,582,562$            1,619,895$            97.7%
Corporate Personal Property Replacement Tax 175,041                 400,225                 43.7% 269,994                 544,968                 49.5%
Tax Increment Financing Disbursements 84,598                   122,955                 68.8% 115,051                 125,000                 92.0%

Total Local Government 1,977,409              2,297,209              86.1% 1,967,607              2,289,863              85.9%

State Government:
ICCB Credit Hour Grant 237,641                 341,899                 69.5% 231,377                 318,132                 72.7%

Total State Government 237,641                 341,899                 69.5% 231,377                 318,132                 72.7%

Student Tuition and Fees
Tuition 389,159                 360,646                 107.9% 350,801                 450,300                 77.9%

Total Tuition and Fees 389,159                 360,646                 107.9% 350,801                 450,300                 77.9%

Other Sources:
Facilities Revenue 102,009                 112,080                 91.0% 49,274                   115,000                 42.8%
Investment Revenue 104,435                 166,250                 62.8% 125,010                 65,000                   192.3%
Other 1,745                      5,000                      34.9% 1,814                      5,000                      36.3%

Total Other Sources 208,189                 283,330                 73.5% 176,098                 185,000                 95.2%

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE REVENUES 2,812,397$            3,283,084$            85.7% 2,725,882$            3,243,295$            84.0%

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND EXPENDITURES
Operations & Maintenance of Plant:

Salaries 741,264                 1,200,296              61.8% 749,051                 1,068,967              70.1%
Employee Benefits 251,590                 334,181                 75.3% 253,474                 330,353                 76.7%
Contractual Services 93,558                   179,200                 52.2% 87,813                   178,700                 49.1%
Materials & Supplies 274,800                 357,250                 76.9% 170,347                 290,250                 58.7%
Conference & Meeting 343                         1,300                      26.4% 399                         1,300                      30.7%
Fixed Charges 296,062                 216,000                 137.1% 212,594                 173,100                 122.8%
Utilities 400,971                 729,100                 55.0% 390,659                 780,900                 50.0%
Capital Outlay 58,619                   1,569,415              3.7% 281,748                 193,000                 146.0%
Provision for Contingency -                          18,932                   0.0% -                          23,573                   0.0%
Other -                          -                          #DIV/0! -                          -                          #DIV/0!

Total Operations & Maintenance of Plant 2,117,207              4,605,674              46.0% 2,146,084              3,040,143              70.6%

Institutional Support:
Salaries 44,100                   64,242                   68.6% 42,136                   50,087                   84.1%
Employee Benefits 30,863                   40,773                   75.7% 31,076                   41,219                   75.4%
Contractual Services 2,746                      2,615                      105.0% 2,773                      2,700                      102.7%
Materials & Supplies 2,486                      5,580                      44.5% 2,640                      5,308                      49.7%
Fixed Charges 4,099                      4,200                      97.6% 4,066                      -                          #DIV/0!
Other 39,988                   -                          -                          4,200                      

Total Institutional Support 124,282                 117,410                 105.9% 82,690                   103,514                 79.9%

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES 2,241,488$            4,723,084$            47.5% 2,228,774$            3,143,657$            70.9%

31



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Summary of  Fiscal Year 2025 Revenues & Expenditures by Fund

For the eight months ended February 25, 2025
Unaudited

2/28/2025
Annual Budget

FY2025
Actual/Budget

66.7% 2/29/2024
Annual Budget

FY2024
Actual/Budget

66.7%
OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND (RESTRICTED)
Local Government Sources:

Current Taxes 1,150,954              1,229,645              93.6% 1,500,169              1,784,074              84.1%
State Government Sources 4,360                      220,788                 0.0% 16,695                   240,788                 0.0%
Federal Government Sources -                          3,500,000              0.0% -                          3,500,000              0.0%
Investment Revenue 57,772                   114,000                 50.7% 80,657                   48,000                   168.0%
Other -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND
(RESTRICTED) REVENUES 1,213,086$            5,064,433$            24.0% 1,597,522$            5,572,862$            28.7%

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND RESTRICTED
EXPENDITURES

Contractual Services 2,514$                   505,777$               0.0% 17,374$                 625,827$               0.0%
Materials and Supplies -$                       -$                       0.0% 24,300$                 -$                       0.0%
Fixed Charges -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          0.0%
Capital Outlay 554,989                 6,080,406              9.1% 1,591,506              4,609,771              34.5%

TOTAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND
(RESTRICTED) EXPENDITURES 557,503$               6,586,183$            8.5% 1,633,180$            5,235,598$            31.2%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - NET -$                       870,000$               0.0% -$                       -$                       #DIV/0!

DEBT SERVICE FUND
Investment Revenue 26,947$                 8,000$                   336.8% 27,541$                 8,000$                   344.3%

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND REVENUES 26,947$                 8,000$                   336.8% 27,541$                 8,000$                   344.3%

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND EXPENDITURES 643$                       -$                       0.0% 596$                       -$                       0.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS - NET -$                       (870,000)$              0.0% -$                       -$                       #DIV/0!

AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES FUND REVENUE
Service Fees 1,297,144$            1,597,503$            81.2% 1,212,918$            723,727$               167.6%
Investment Revenue 463                         3,000                      15.4% 193                         200                         96.6%
Other Revenue 8,528                      200                         4263.9% 2,535                      31,500                   8.0%

TOTAL AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES FUND REVENUES 1,306,135$            1,600,703$            81.6% 1,215,647$            755,427$               160.9%

AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES FUND EXPENSES
Salaries 263,425$               364,331$               72.3% 257,051$               368,206$               69.8%
Employee Benefits 57,908                   104,920                 55.2% 52,479                   77,480                   67.7%
Contractual Services 623,005                 996,035                 62.5% 609,995                 274,302                 222.4%
Materials & Supplies 487,134                 483,198                 100.8% 489,886                 301,846                 162.3%
Conference & Meeting 37,992                   40,352                   94.2% 31,781                   29,196                   108.9%
Fixed Charges 41,643                   58,696                   70.9% 19,185                   49,452                   38.8%
Capital Outlay/Depreciation -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          #DIV/0!
Other -                          -                          #DIV/0! 705                         -                          #DIV/0!

32



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Summary of  Fiscal Year 2025 Revenues & Expenditures by Fund

For the eight months ended February 25, 2025
Unaudited

2/28/2025
Annual Budget

FY2025
Actual/Budget

66.7% 2/29/2024
Annual Budget

FY2024
Actual/Budget

66.7%
TOTAL AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES EXPENDITURES 1,511,106$            2,047,532$            73.8% 1,461,081$            1,100,482$            132.8%

AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES  INTERFUND TRANSFERS - NET -$                       454,029$               0.0% -$                       366,239$               0.0%

33



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Summary of  Fiscal Year 2025 Revenues & Expenditures by Fund

For the eight months ended February 25, 2025
Unaudited

2/28/2025
Annual Budget

FY2025
Actual/Budget

66.7% 2/29/2024
Annual Budget

FY2024
Actual/Budget

66.7%
RESTRICTED PURPOSE FUND REVENUES
State Government Sources 781,544$               659,077$               118.6% 814,356$               874,788$               93.1%
Federal Government Sources 5,284,023              4,408,805              119.9% 3,886,913              4,310,895              90.2%
Nongovernmental Gifts or Grants 51,836                   -                          0.0% 28,085                   -                          #DIV/0!
Other Revenue 35,180                   2,000                      1759.0% 61,492                   2,000                      0.0%

TOTAL RESTRICTED PURPOSE FUND REVENUES 6,152,584$            5,069,882$            121.4% 4,790,847$            5,187,683$            92.4%

RESTRICTED PURPOSE FUND EXPENDITURES
Instruction:

Salaries 337,192$               687,303$               49.1% 421,807$               703,243$               60.0%
Employee Benefits 117,310                 253,816                 46.2% 138,882                 266,294                 52.2%
Contractual Services 187,910                 107,651                 174.6% 86,067                   92,241                   93.3%
Materials & Supplies 299,670                 166,223                 180.3% 197,788                 100,897                 196.0%
Conference & Meeting 11,494                   24,950                   46.1% 9,824                      69,580                   14.1%
Utilities -                          -                          #DIV/0! -                          -                          #DIV/0!
Capital Outlay 139,179                 -                          99,393                   314,028                 0.0%
Other -                          -                          962                         -                          0.0%

Total Instruction 1,092,755              1,239,943              88.1% 954,722                 1,546,283              61.7%

Academic Support
  Salaries -$                       -$                       0.0% -$                       -$                       0.0%
   Employee Benefits -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

Contractual Services -                          -                          0.0% -$                       -                          #DIV/0!
Materials and Supplies 277                         -                          0.0% 2,584                      -                          #DIV/0!
Conference & Meeting 5,500                      -                          0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

Total Academic Support 5,777                      -                          2,584                      -                          #DIV/0!

Student Services:
Salaries 157,839$               227,167$               69.5% 148,343$               223,904$               66.3%
Employee Benefits 45,272                   67,906                   66.7% 45,070                   80,330                   56.1%
Contractual Services 16,569                   4,781                      346.6% 4,990                      4,781                      104.4%
Materials & Supplies 11,953                   10,636                   112.4% 7,039                      1,900                      370.5%
Conference & Meeting 3,980                      5,600                      71.1% 3,617                      5,175                      69.9%
Utilities -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          0.0%
Capital Outlay -                          -                          0.0% 102,379                 -                          #DIV/0!
Tuition Waivers (TRiO Grant) 28,730                   28,000                   102.6% 27,010                   28,000                   96.5%

Total Student Services 264,343                 344,090                 76.8% 338,446                 344,090                 98.4%

Public Services/Continuing Education:
   Salaries 32,508                   45,000                   0.0% 28,547                   -                          0.0%
   Employee Benefits 4,920                      4,000                      0.0% 7,813                      -                          0.0%
   Materials and Supplies 15                           -                          0.0% 2,700                      -                          0.0%

Contractual Services 115,515                 51,000                   0.0% 37,985                   -                          0.0%
Total Public Services: 152,958                 100,000                 0.0% 77,045                   -                          0.0%

Operations & Maintenance of Plant:
Contractual Services -                          -                          #DIV/0! -                          -                          0.0%
Capital Outlay -                          -                          #DIV/0! 239                         -                          0.0%
Maintenance supplies -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          0.0%

34



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Summary of  Fiscal Year 2025 Revenues & Expenditures by Fund

For the eight months ended February 25, 2025
Unaudited

2/28/2025
Annual Budget

FY2025
Actual/Budget

66.7% 2/29/2024
Annual Budget

FY2024
Actual/Budget

66.7%
Total Operations & Maintenance of Plant -                          -                          0.0% 239                         -                          0.0%

Institutional Support:
Salaries (Federal Work Study) 56,482                   82,888                   68.1% 76,377                   99,574                   76.7%
Contractual Services -                          -                          #DIV/0! 1,000                      78,650                   1.3%
Institutional Support -                          -                          0.0% -                          7,300                      0.0%
SURS on-behalf -                          -                          0.0% -                          -                          0.0%
Other 6,738                      -                          #DIV/0! 20,451                   -                          #DIV/0!

Total Institutional Support 63,220                   82,888                   76.3% 97,828                   185,524                 52.7%

Student Grants and Waivers (PELL & SEOG & HEERF) 4,430,800              3,310,961              133.8% 3,343,655              3,119,786              107.2%

TOTAL RESTRICTED FUND EXPENDITURES 6,009,854$            5,077,882$            118.4% 4,814,518$            8,132,698$            59.2%

RESTRICTED INTERFUND TRANSFERS - NET 10,000$                 2,000$                   500.0% 10,000$                 200$                       5000.0%

WORKING CASH FUND REVENUES
Investment Revenue 154,912$               150,000$               103.3% 170,409$               75,000$                 227.2%

TOTAL WORKING CASH FUND EXPENDITURES 2,263$                   -$                       0.0% 1,644$                   -$                       0.0%

 WORKING CASH INTERFUND TRANSFERS - NET -$                       (445,680)$              0.0% -$                       -$                       0.0%

35



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Summary of  Fiscal Year 2025 Revenues & Expenditures by Fund

For the eight months ended February 25, 2025
Unaudited

2/28/2025
Annual Budget

FY2025
Actual/Budget

66.7% 2/29/2024
Annual Budget

FY2024
Actual/Budget

66.7%

AUDIT FUND REVENUES
Local Government Sources:

Current Taxes 43,948$                 44,351$                 99.1% 43,625$                 46,899$                 93.0%
Investment Revenue 729                         600                         121.4% 697                         500                         139.4%

TOTAL AUDIT FUND REVENUES 44,676                   44,951                   99.4% 44,322                   47,399                   93.5%

AUDIT FUND EXPENDITURES
Contractual Services 44,000                   44,000                   100.0% 44,950                   46,500                   96.7%

TOTAL AUDIT FUND EXPENDITURES 44,000$                 44,000$                 100.0% 44,950$                 40,000$                 112.4%

LIABILITY, PROTECTION & SETTLEMENT FUND
REVENUE

Local Government Sources:
Current Taxes 1,555,286$            1,577,755$            98.6% 1,541,800$            1,552,546$            99.3%

Investment Revenue 17,785                   32,000                   55.6% 22,171                   13,000                   170.5%
Other Revenue -                          -                          -                          -                          0.0%

TOTAL LIABILITY, PROTECTION & SETTLEMENT FUND
REVENUE 1,573,071              1,609,755              97.7% 1,563,971              1,565,546              99.9%

LIABILITY, PROTECTION & SETTLEMENT FUND
EXPENDITURES

Student Services:
Salaries 83,104                   90,324                   92.0% 68,072                   86,210                   79.0%
Employee Benefits 34,737                   28,914                   120.1% 21,975                   29,273                   75.1%
Contractual Services 110,826                 125,500                 88.3% 701                         125,500                 0.6%
Materials & Supplies 793                         500                         158.7% 943                         500                         188.6%

Total Student Services 229,460                 245,238                 93.6% 91,691                   241,483                 38.0%

Operations & Maintenance of Plant:
Contractual Services 397,091                 549,000                 72.3% 376,582                 512,000                 73.6%
Materials & Supplies 3,576                      800                         447.0% 5,587                      100                         5586.8%
Utilities 241                         500                         48.1% 254                         500                         50.8%

Total Operations & Maintenance of Plant 400,907                 550,300                 72.9% 382,422                 512,600                 74.6%

Institutional Support:
Salaries 66,043                   88,672                   74.5% 58,712                   90,922                   64.6%
Employee Benefits 17,734                   284,190                 6.2% 16,897                   262,251                 6.4%
Contractual Services 121,911                 180,150                 67.7% 115,455                 140,000                 82.5%
Materials & Supplies 5,224                      15,000                   34.8% 19,072                   1,500                      1271.4%
Conference & Meeting 9,224                      4,500                      205.0% -                          4,500                      0.0%
Fixed Charges 154,674                 283,700                 54.5% 194,992                 255,000                 76.5%

Total Institutional Support 374,810                 856,212                 43.8% 405,127                 754,173                 53.7%

TOTAL LIABILITY, PROTECTION & SETTLEMENT FUND
EXPENDITURES 1,005,177$            1,651,750$            60.9% 879,240$               1,252,337$            70.2%

36



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Fiscal Year 2025 Budget to Actual Comparison
For the eight months ended February 28, 2025

as of February 28, 2025
Unaudited

Department
Actual

FY2025

Annual
Budget 
FY2025

Actual/
Budget
66.7%

President 249,743          342,975          72.8%
Board of Trustees 11,733            19,700            59.6%
Marketing and Communications 187,398          483,210          38.8%
Foundation 168,313          231,720          72.6%
Continuing Education 727,248          969,557          75.0%

Facilities 2,658,305      6,600,978      40.3%
Information Technologies 2,194,204      3,528,064      62.2%
Institutional Effectiveness 170,895          265,793          64.3%
Academic Affairs 231,363          368,704          62.8%
ATOMAT (Grant) 228,756          226,472          101.0%
Carl Perkins (Grant) 95,179            249,823          38.1%
Distance Learning (Grant) 363,616          -                   #DIV/0!
PATH (Grant) 265,769          250,000          106.3%
Adult Education 347,485          513,648          67.7%
Learning Resources 1,160,599      1,817,112      63.9%

Workforce Development Division 1,528,090      2,359,131      64.8%
Natural Sciences & Business Division 2,371,893      3,272,447      72.5%
Humanities & Fine Arts/Social Science Division 2,276,969      3,487,828      65.3%
Health Professions Division 1,801,766      2,615,164      68.9%

Admissions & Records 285,027          492,554          57.9%
Counseling & Student Success 647,893          966,893          67.0%
Student Services 152,889          265,767          57.5%
Financial Aid 4,666,935      3,784,014      123.3%
Career Services 22,147            51,080            43.4%
Athletics 305,852          389,149          78.6%
TRiO (Student Success Grant) 241,519          344,090          70.2%
Ottawa Center 70,947            117,848          60.2%

Campus Security 399,052          546,300          73.0%
Business Services/General Institution 804,122          1,860,262      43.2%
DCEO-Ag Site work (Grant) 4,360              220,878          2.0%
Ag. Ed Center (Grant) 12,045            4,370,000      0.3%
Risk Management 376,665          860,212          43.8%
Tuition Waivers 1,061,775      1,105,500      96.0%

Food Service 189,144          276,580          68.4%
Purchasing 118,974          158,763          74.9%
Human Resources 166,302          256,460          64.8%
Bookstore 918,636          1,256,141      73.1%
Shipping & Receiving 123,253          117,410          105.0%
Copy Center 52,500            79,662            65.9%

Total FY25 Expenditures 27,659,360    45,121,889    61.3%

37



38



Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513
Investment Status Report

All Funds
February 28, 2025

Instrument

Current 
Portfolio 

Distribution
Current 
Portfolio

Weighted Average 
Yield

Illinois 
Investment 

Pool         
ISDLAF+

Certificates of 
Deposit      

Government 
Securities Cash & Trusts Total

Current 
Distribution

Cash 18.0% 6,408,708$      3.683% Institution
Financial Aid Account 10.5% 3,716,869        3.750% IL Funds -General 9,534,071$     -                        -                        9,534,071        27%
Certificates of Deposit & 
Government Securities 41.6% 14,802,347      3.996% ISDLAF+ Funds 1,100,552       8,377,780         -                        9,478,333        27%
Illinois Investment Pool & 
ISDLAF+ 29.9% 10,634,623      4.482% Midland States Bank -                       -                        6,121,172         6,121,172        17%

Total 35,562,548$    4.059% Midland States-F/A -                       -                        3,716,869         3,716,869        10%
Midland States-Bldg -                       -                        -                    -                       0%
LaSalle State Bank -                       -                        115,810            115,810           0%
Commerce Bank -                       -                        -                    -                       0%
Multi Bank Securities -                       236,450            -                    236,450           1%
Hometown Ntl Bank -                       -                        -                    -                       0%
PMA Holdings -                       6,188,117         32,179              6,220,296        17%
Heartland Bank -                       -                        139,548            139,548           0%
Marseilles Bank -                       -                    -                        -                       0%

35,562,548$    10,634,623$   14,802,347$     10,125,577$    35,562,548$    100%

$
$5

$10
$15
$20
$25

Am
ou

nt
 M

at
ur

in
g

(in
 m

ill
io

ns
)

Maturity Schedule

Cash
18%

Financial Aid 
Account

10%

Certificates of 
Deposit & 

Government 
Securities

42%

Illinois Investment 
Pool & ISDLAF+

30%

$

$10

$20

$30

$40

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

(M
ill

io
ns

)

Fund Balance Analysis

Operating Funds (01 & 02)

Target (25% of Budgeted Expenditures)

39



ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
PMA INVESTMENT STATUS REPORT

February 28, 2025

DUE Education Oper & Maint
O&M 

Restricted Bond & Int Auxiliary Working Cash

Liability
Protection &

Settlement Total Holder Note Number
Rate

%
APY

% Investment Description

12/1/2025 43,621                21,874                13,608                48,072                127,175               FNMA 3138L5RN2 3.97% 3.97% Govt Treasuries

12/1/2025 33,969                17,034                10,597                37,435                99,035                 FNMA 3140HR4Y6 3.61% 3.61% Govt Treasuries

3/31/2026 98,896                49,592                30,851                108,988              288,327               J.P. Morgan 91282CBT7 0.75% 0.75% Govt Treasuries

4/1/2026 29,128                14,607                9,087                  32,100                84,922                 FNMA 3138LDSW4 2.67% 2.67% Govt Treasuries

5/25/2026 18,431                9,242                  5,750                  20,312                53,735                 FHLMC 3137BQYS0 2.53% 2.53% Govt Treasuries

7/1/2026 42,454                21,289                13,244                46,786                123,773               FNMA 3138LDY80 2.53% 2.53% Govt Treasuries

9/1/2026 30,248                15,168                9,436                  33,334                88,186                 FNMA 3140LDB65 1.10% 1.10% Govt Treasuries

1/25/2027 25,215                12,644                7,866                  27,788                73,514                 FHLMC 3137BVZ82 3.43% 3.43% Govt Treasuries

3/31/2027 113,232              56,781                35,323                124,786              330,122               J.P. Morgan 91282CEF4 2.50% 2.50% Govt Treasuries

6/25/2027 83,167                41,705                25,944                91,654                242,470               FHLMC 3137F2LJ3 3.12% 3.12% Govt Treasuries

7/25/2027 41,544                20,832                12,960                45,783                121,119               FHLMC 3137FAWS3 3.19% 3.19% Govt Treasuries

9/25/2027 24,630                12,351                7,684                  27,144                71,809                 FHLMC 3137FBU79 3.19% 3.19% Govt Treasuries

9/30/2027 34,221                17,160                10,675                37,713                99,770                 Scotia Capital 91282CFM8 4.13% 4.13% Govt Treasuries

12/25/2027 42,271                21,197                13,187                46,584                123,239               FNMA 3136AY7L1 2.99% 2.99% Govt Treasuries

5/31/2028 209,449              105,030              65,338                230,822              610,640               Bofa Securities 91282CHE4 3.63% 3.63% Govt Treasuries

6/25/2028 34,476                17,288                10,755                37,994                100,514               FHLMC 3137HACX2 4.82% 4.82% Govt Treasuries

9/25/2028 51,830                25,991                16,169                57,119                151,109               FHLMC 3137HAST4 4.85% 4.85% Govt Treasuries

10/25/2028 34,744                17,423                10,838                38,289                101,294               FHLMC 3137HB3D4 5.07% 5.07% Govt Treasuries

11/25/2028 26,038                13,057                8,123                  28,695                75,912                 FHLMC 3137HBCF9 5.00% 5.00% Govt Treasuries

12/25/2028 34,181                17,140                10,663                37,669                99,653                 FHLMC 3137HBLV4 4.57% 4.57% Govt Treasuries

1/1/2029 51,810                25,980                16,162                57,096                151,049               FNMA 3140NUFF1 4.83% 4.83% Govt Treasuries

2/1/2029 37,280                18,694                11,630                41,084                108,689               FNMA 3140HS3R0 3.66% 3.66% Govt Treasuries

3/25/2029 34,922                17,512                10,894                38,485                101,812               FHLMC 3137HCKV3 5.18% 5.18% Govt Treasuries

5/25/2029 34,425                17,263                10,739                37,938                100,365               FHLMC 3137HDJJ0 4.80% 4.80% Govt Treasuries

7/31/2029 57,545                28,856                17,951                63,417                167,770               Scotia Capital 91282CLC3 4.00% 4.00% Govt Treasuries

9/25/2029 17,669                8,860                  5,512                  19,472                51,514                 FHLMC 3137H9D71 3.00% 3.00% Govt Treasuries

9/25/2029 34,433                17,267                10,741                37,946                100,387               FHLMC 3137HHJL6 4.79% 4.79% Govt Treasuries

40



ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
PMA INVESTMENT STATUS REPORT

February 28, 2025

DUE Education Oper & Maint
O&M 

Restricted Bond & Int Auxiliary Working Cash

Liability
Protection &

Settlement Total Holder Note Number
Rate

%
APY

% Investment Description
9/30/2029 33,633                16,865                10,492                37,065                98,055                 Scotia Capital 91282CFL0 3.88% 3.88% Govt Treasuries

10/31/2029 84,507                42,377                26,362                93,131                246,378               Scotia Capital 91282CFT3 4.00% 4.00% Govt Treasuries

12/25/2029 33,627                16,862                10,490                37,058                98,037                 FHLMC 3137HHW23 2.58% 2.58% Govt Treasuries

4/19/2026 42,340                21,232                13,208                46,661                123,441               Bank of America 06051GFX2 3.50% 3.50% Corporate Issue

5/15/2026 17,170                8,610                  5,356                  18,922                50,060                 Florida Pwr Lt Co 341081GR2 4.45% 4.45% Corporate Issue

8/3/2026 34,649                17,375                10,809                38,185                101,018               State Str Corp 857477CD3 5.27% 5.27% Corporate Issue

9/30/2026 34,592                17,346                10,791                38,121                100,850               Home Depot 437076CV2 4.95% 4.95% Corporate Issue

10/23/2026 33,342                16,719                10,401                36,744                97,206                 Wells Fargo Co 949746SH5 3.00% 3.00% Corporate Issue

11/21/2026 33,399                16,748                10,419                36,807                97,374                 Abbvie 00287YBV0 2.95% 2.95% Corporate Issue

12/1/2026 25,899                12,987                8,079                  28,542                75,508                 Dte Elec Co 23338VAU0 4.85% 4.85% Corporate Issue

1/15/2027 32,885                16,491                10,259                36,241                95,876                 Comcast Corp 20030NBW0 2.35% 2.35% Corporate Issue

4/4/2027 34,609                17,355                10,797                38,141                100,902               Adobe Inc 00724PAE9 4.85% 4.85% Corporate Issue

4/23/2027 26,005                13,040                8,112                  28,658                75,816                 American Expr Co 025816DT3 5.65% 5.65% Corporate Issue

5/16/2027 16,670                8,359                  5,200                  18,371                48,601                 Bank of NY Mellon 06406RAD9 3.25% 3.25% Corporate Issue

10/15/2027 34,192                17,146                10,666                37,681                99,684                 Caterpillar 14913UAR1 4.40% 4.40% Corporate Issue

11/8/2027 34,257                17,179                10,687                37,753                99,876                 Marsh McLennan 571748BY7 4.55% 4.55% Corporate Issue

11/17/2027 34,688                17,394                10,821                38,227                101,130               Bp Cap Mkts Amer 10373QBY5 5.02% 5.02% Corporate Issue

1/7/2028 34,472                17,286                10,754                37,989                100,500               John Deere Capital 24422EXZ7 4.65% 4.65% Corporate Issue

5/1/2026 51,684                25,917                16,123                56,958                150,682               Wisconsin 977100GY6 2.10% 2.10% Municipal Issue

3/1/2027 17,275                8,663                  5,389                  19,037                50,364                 California 13063D3N6 4.85% 4.85% Municipal Issue

5/15/2027 33,450                16,774                10,435                36,863                97,522                 University Ca 91412GQJ7 3.28% 3.28% Municipal Issue

6/1/2027 32,078                16,086                10,007                35,351                93,522                 Connecticut 20772KNY1 1.50% 1.50% Municipal Issue

6/30/2027 31,847                15,970                9,935                  35,097                92,849                 Multnomah Cnty 625517NG8 1.25% 1.25% Municipal Issue

1/1/2029 15,424                7,735                  4,812                  16,998                44,969                 Birimingham,AL 091096NZ6 1.61% 1.61% Municipal Issue

Total PMA 2,122,524           1,064,356           -                      662,129              -                      2,339,108           -                      6,188,117            

41



ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
ISDLAF+ Investments 

February 28, 2025

DUE Education Oper & Maint
O&M 

Restricted Bond & Int Auxiliary Working Cash

Liability
Protection &

Settlement Total Bank
Rate

%
APY

%
Certificate

Number

4/7/2025 231,350             231,350              Baxter Credit Union 5.33% 5.33% 1354334-1

4/11/2025 244,600             244,600              CrossFirst Bank 4.40% 4.40% 1370062-1

4/14/2025 231,650             231,650              Truxton Trust Company 5.19% 5.19% 1354409-1

4/15/2025 237,800             237,800              First Internet Bank of Indiana 5.08% 5.08% 1360552-1

6/16/2025 237,550             237,550              Western Alliance Bank 5.21% 5.21% 1363172-1

7/8/2025 241,700             241,700              Veritex Community Bank 4.59% 4.59% 1369978-1

7/9/2025 233,000             233,000              Patriot Bank 4.83% 4.83% 1357751-1

7/9/2025 233,050             233,050              CIBC Bank USA 4.82% 4.82% 1357750-1

7/15/2025 750,000             750,000              Midland States Bank 4.10% 4.10% 1370462-1

8/15/2025 750,000             750,000              Midland States Bank 4.06% 4.06% 1370461-1

9/15/2025 500,000             500,000              Western Alliance Bank 4.17% 4.17% 1370452-1

10/9/2025 226,000             226,000              First National Bank 5.18% 5.18% 1354333-1

10/15/2025 497,233             497,233              US Government Treasuries 4.22% 4.22% 67136-1

11/14/2025 239,700             239,700              Susquehanna Community Bank 4.25% 4.25% 1370979-1

11/14/2025 239,800             239,800              T Bank, National Association 4.21% 4.21% 1370978-1

12/15/2025 232,700             232,700              Farmers and Merchants Union 4.94% 4.94% 1363173-1

12/15/2025 239,600             239,600              Consumers Credit Union 4.20% 4.20% 1371501-1

12/15/2025 239,600             239,600              Harmony Bank 4.20% 4.20% 1371502-1

1/9/2026 228,600             228,600              Schertz Bank & Trust 4.64% 4.64% 1357749-1

1/9/2026 240,100             240,100              KS StateBank 4.07% 4.07% 1372766-1

1/9/2026 240,100             240,100              Trustar Bank 4.07% 4.07% 1372767-1

1/15/2026 238,800             238,800              Solera National Bank 4.19% 4.19% 1371500-1

1/15/2026 239,000             239,000              First Capital Bank 4.11% 4.11% 1371503-1

3/9/2026 235,300             235,300              Cornerstone Bank 4.13% 4.13% 1367958-1

3/13/2026 236,000             236,000              Servis First Bank 3.96% 3.96% 1368463-1

4/9/2026 228,600             228,600              American National Bank & Trust 4.65% 4.65% 1360552-1

9/9/2026 231,200             231,200              Financial Federal Bank, TN 4.05% 4.05% 1367957-1

2/15/2027 229,943             229,943              STRIPS 4.22% 4.22% 68254-1

8/15/2027 224,805             224,805              STRIPS 4.29% 4.29% 68255-1

Total CD 6,036,730          237,800             706,250             -                     -                     1,397,000          -                     8,377,780           

42



ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
INVESTMENT STATUS REPORT

February 28, 2025

DUE Education Oper & Maint O&M Restricted Bond & Int Auxiliary Working Cash

Liability
Protection &
Settlement Total Bank

Rate
%

Certificate
Number

2/25/2026 236,450              236,450               MBS 0.65% State Bank of India

Total CD -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      236,450              -                      236,450               

MBS Multi-Bank Securities, Inc.

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



Action Item 14 
 
Master Plan – February 2025 
 
Illinois Community Colleges are required to submit updated master facility plans for the 
ICCB recognition process. IVCC’s recognition visit was in January 2025. Our last master 
plan update was adopted by the Board of Trustees in February 2019. 
 
Dominick Demonica, of Demonica Kemper Architects, was involved in the master plan 
process in January 2005, September 2011, December 2018, and was again retained to 
update the plan.  
 
The December 2018 master plan was the basis for the proposed plan.  
 
Changes/enhancements to the 2018 plan include: 
 

New Construction: 
• Career and Technical Education expansion to Building J; 
• Fieldhouse/Fitness Center addition to Building G; 
• New Agriculture Education Building and Greenhouse; 

 
Renovations/Enhancements to Existing Space: 

• Remove existing Parking Lot 3 and return to green space; 
• Relocate/expand Assessment Center; 
• Create new Microbiology Lab/Classroom; 
• Lower level student space renovation; 
• Classroom renovations; 
• Replace all fluorescent lighting; 
• Relocate Information Technology (IT) offices; 
• Renovate Library/Academic Support Center (ASC); 
• Renovate Health Professions Skills Lab; 
• Expand Dental Assisting Program; 
• Renovate Locker Rooms/Athletic space. 

 
Renovations proposed in the December 2018 plan which are now completed include: 

• Dairy barn demolished and construction of Ag Storage Building.  
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends the Board accept the February 2025 Master Plan 
as presented. 
 
 
KPI 5: District Population Served 

51



 Action Item 15 
 
Staff Appointment – Amber Fox, Dean of Natural Sciences and Business 
 
Amber Fox has been selected as the Dean of Natural Sciences and Business. Information 
on this candidate is attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends the appointment of Amber Fox as Dean of Natural 
Sciences and Business at an annualized salary of $85,642, effective May 19, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
KPI 4: Support for Employees 
KPI 5: District Population Served 
 
 

 
 
  
 

52



RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2025 

 

Position To Be Filled:   
Dean of Natural Sciences and Business 
 

Number of  
Applicants:  12 

Number of Applicants 
Interviewed:   4 

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Vicki Trier, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
• Heather Seghi, Dean of Health Professions 
• Larry Ault, Faculty 
• Bob Reese, Faculty 
• Jennifer Timmers, Faculty 
• Justin Denton, Director of IT 
• Aseret Loveland, Counselor, TRIO/Project Success 
• Sarah Trager, Dual Credit and Enrollment Coordinator 
• Danielle Bell, Administrative Assistant 

 
Applicant Recommended: Amber Fox 
 
Educational Preparation: 

• Bradley University, Peoria, IL – Master of Science in Accounting 
• Monmouth College, Monmouth, IL – Bachelor of Arts in Accounting 

 
Experience: 

• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Accounting Instructor and Program 
Coordinator; Adjunct Instructor 

• Carl Sandburg College, Galesburg, IL – Accounting Instructor 
• Black Hawk College East, Galva, IL – Adjunct Accounting Instructor 
• Knox College, Galesburg, IL – Adjunct Accounting Instructor 
• LCN Closers, Princeton, IL – Quality Systems Coordinator 

 
This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 

1. Experience with curriculum development, scheduling, budget management, and hiring of 
full and part-time faculty 

2. Exhibited strong communication skills throughout the interview process; a crucial skill 
for this position 

3. Energetic and approachable 
4. Understood the challenges facing the division 

 
Recommended Salary:  $85,642 annualized Effective Date:  05/19/2025 

 
 

Mary Beth Herron 
Director of Human Resources 

 

53



 Action Item 16 
 
Faculty Resignation – Dr. Sammy Kumar, CNA Instructor 
 
Dr. Sammy Kumar, CNA Instructor, submitted a letter of resignation effective March 6, 
2025. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Accept the resignation of Dr. Sammy Kumar, CNA Instructor, effective March 6, 
2025. 
 
 
 
 
KPI 4: Support for Employees 
 

 
 
  
 

54



 

 Action Item 18 

 
Approval-Board Policy  
 
Board Policy 02.23 – Residency is an update to policy. This policy is designed to provide 
guidance related to residency policies as governed by the Illinois Community College 
Board. The changes to policy were brought forward following our ICCB Recognition Visit 
to ensure compliance with the Administrative Rules. This policy was shared with the 
Planning Committee in February, 2025 and is being brought forward for approval. 

 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Board Policy, as presented. 
 
 
KPI 3:  Support for Students 
 
 
 

55



56



57



 

 Action Item 19 

 
Approval-Board Policy  
 
Board Policy 06.21 – Non-Discrimination/Anti-Harassment is a new policy. This policy is 
designed to provide guidance related to non-discrimination and anti-harassment policies as 
governed by federal and state laws. The policy has been in the works as a way to bring the 
multiple laws and requirements into one policy. In addition, gender-based discrimination 
that was previously in Board Policy 06.13 Sex Discrimination have been moved into this 
policy. This policy was shared with the Planning Committee in February, 2025 and is being 
brought forward for approval. 

 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Board Policy, as presented. 
 
 
KPI 3:  Support for Students 
KPI 4:  Support for Employees 
 
 
 

58



Board Policy 06.21  page 1 
 

 

Illinois Valley Community College (the College) is committed to a work environment in which all 
individuals are treated with respect and dignity. Faculty, staff and students have a right to work 
and learn in an atmosphere that promotes equal opportunity and prohibits unlawful discriminatory 
practices, including harassment. 
 
As an open-access institution, the College is committed to serving our entire community in an 
equitable manner and is committed to providing a safe and respectful environment. The College 
complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 
1972, the Equal Protection Clause of the United States Constitution, and other relevant state and 
federal laws and prohibits discrimination and harassment based on race, traits of race, color, or 
national origin as outlined in the Dear Colleague letter dated February 14, 2025. 
 
In addition, the College prohibits discrimination based on sex, age, religion,  ancestry, physical or 
mental disability, association with a person with a disability, marital status, military status, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, gender-related identity and expression, sex stereotypes, sex 
characteristics, pregnancy or related conditions, parental status, order of protection status, 
unfavorable discharge from military service, work authorization status, citizenship status, or any 
other basis of discrimination precluded by applicable federal and state statutes, or acts or threats 
of violence from students, employees, elected officials, volunteers, or third parties including 
visitors, vendors, consultants and contractors. 
 
Any individual who feels that they have been discriminated against is encouraged to report this 
behavior to the Human Resources Department, Title IX Coordinator as outlined in Board Policy 
06.13 or to the College Legal Counsel. 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy  
 

Subject: Non-Discrimination/Anti-Harassment Effective Date:  03/19/2025 
   Last Reviewed: xx/xx/xxxx 
Number: 06.21  Last Revised: xx/xx/xxxx 
   

59



 

 Action Item 20 

 
Approval-Board Policy  
 
Board Policy 06.22 – Prohibiting Sex-Based Misconduct is a new policy, in some ways. 
This policy is designed to provide guidance related to sex-based misconduct policies as 
governed by federal law. Due to the sweeping nature of the changes, this policy will take 
the place of Board Policy 06.13 Sex Discrimination, which will be voted on next. These 
Title IX laws were previously upheld by courts and have been directed to be placed into 
policy immediately. This policy was shared with the Planning Committee in February, 
2025 and is being brought forward for approval. 

 

 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve Board Policy, as presented. 
 
 
KPI 3:  Support for Students 
KPI 4:  Support for Employees 
 
 
 

60



Board Policy 06.22  page 1 

 

 
I. Policy Statement 

Illinois Valley Community College (IVCC) is committed to maintaining a safe and healthy educational and 
employment environment that is free from harassment and other forms of discrimination based on sex, 
sexual orientation, gender-related identity and expression, pregnancy, and other protected characteristics 
related to sex under federal, state, or local law. The College prohibits all forms of sex-based misconduct, 
including, but not limited to, sex discrimination, sexual harassment, sexual violence, domestic violence, 
dating violence, and stalking. The College also prohibits discrimination and harassment based on protected 
characteristics under Board Policy 06.21 Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment. 

 
It is the policy of IVCC to comply with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (“Title IX”), the 
Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act (“VAWA”), Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (“Title 
VII”), the Illinois Human Rights Act, the Jeanne Clery Campus Safety Act (“Clery Act”), the Preventing 
Sexual Violence in Higher Education Act, and all other applicable laws and local ordinances regarding 
unlawful sex-based discrimination, harassment or other misconduct. 
 
Employees or students found to have engaged in prohibited misconduct will be subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including, termination and/or expulsion from the College. Contractors, visitors, and any 
other third parties found to have engaged in prohibited misconduct will be addressed in accordance with 
the authority of the College in the context of the relationship of the third-party to the College. 
 
II. Title IX Compliance 

As required under Title IX and its implementing regulations, the College does not discriminate on the basis 
of sex and prohibits sex discrimination in the education programs and activities that it operates. This 
requirement not to discriminate extends to admissions and employment. 
 
The College has designated the Vice President for Student Services as the Title IX Coordinator, who is 
responsible for coordinating the College’s efforts to comply with its responsibilities under Title IX. 
Inquiries about the application of Title IX and 34 C.F.R. Part 106 may be directed to the College’s Title IX 
Coordinator(s), the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights at the United States Department of Education, or 
both. 
 
III. Retaliation Prohibited 

Retaliation, including intimidation, threats, coercion, adverse educational or employment actions, or 
discrimination against any person because they have, in good faith, reported or disclosed alleged 
discrimination, filed a complaint, or otherwise participated or declined to participate in an investigation into 
allegations of discrimination, is strictly prohibited. 

 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 
  

Subject: Prohibiting Sex-Based Misconduct  Effective Date: 03/19/2025 
   Last Reviewed: xx/xx/xxxx 
Number: 06.22  Last Revised: xx/xx/xxxx 
      

61



Board Policy 06.22  page 2 

IV. Implementing Procedures 

The College will establish, maintain and publish procedures implementing this Policy, which set forth: 
 
• The application and scope of the College’s prohibition on sex-based misconduct; 
• Definitions of prohibited conduct and a definition of consent; 
• Responsibilities of and contact information for the College’s Title IX Coordinator and the 

Director of Human Resources; 
• Rights and options for assistance by the College, law enforcement, a medical facility, or a 

crisis center, following an incident of sex-based misconduct; 
• Procedures for reporting and confidentially disclosing alleged sex-based misconduct, 

including a mechanism for reporting and independent review of allegations against an 
elected official as required by the State Employees and Officials Ethics Act; 

• Responsibilities of College employees with regard to reporting, forwarding, and/or keeping 
confidential allegations of discrimination, as applicable; 

• The College’s response to reports of alleged sex-based misconduct; 
• The College’s grievance process for complaints alleging Title IX sexual harassment and/or 

alleging sexual violence, domestic violence, dating violence, or stalking; 
• Potential sanctions that may be imposed following the implementation of the College’s 

grievance procedures and limits on those sanctions; 
• Prevention and education programming provided to College students; and 
• Training and education provided to the Title IX Coordinator, Deputy Title IX Coordinators, 

campus security, and anyone else involved in the receipt of reports of, responding to, 
investigating or adjudicating alleged incidents of sexual discrimination, harassment or 
other sex-based misconduct, or involved in the referral or provision of services to survivors. 

 

62



 

 Action Item 21 

 
Approval-Removal of Board Policy  
 
Board Policy 06.13 Sex Discrimination is being removed as an official Board Policy as a 
result of the approval of Board Policy 06.22 – Prohibiting Sex-Based Misconduct. This 
policy was designed to provide guidance related to sex-based misconduct policies as 
governed by federal law under the Biden Administration. Due to the sweeping nature of 
the changes, this policy will be replaced by Board Policy 06.22. These Title IX laws were 
previously upheld by courts and have been directed to be placed into policy immediately. 
If by some chance the current guidance is overturned, we will be able to reinstate this policy 
as needed.  

 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Approve removal of Board Policy, as presented. 
 
 
KPI 3:  Support for Students 
KPI 4:  Support for Employees 
 
 
 

63



March 19, 2025 

Illinois Community College Trustees Association 
401 E. Capitol, Suite 200 
Springfield, IL 62701-1711 

Re: 2025 Business / Industry Partnership Award 

Dear ICCTA Awards Committee, 

The Illinois Valley Community College Board of Trustees is pleased to recommend OSF 
Healthcare for the ICCTA Business / Industry Partnership Award. 

The OSF St. Elizabeth (Ottawa), St. Paul (Mendota), and St. Clare (Princeton) sites, under the 
guidance of Heather Bomstad, Vice President of Patient Care Services, were key partners with 
IVCC in support of our new Surgical Technician program. The partnership between IVCC and 
OSF HealthCare was established through a shared commitment of addressing local healthcare 
workforce shortages. IVCC conducted a local needs assessment, identifying Surgical Tech as a 
critical area of demand. OSF confirmed this need and collaborated with IVCC to develop a 
certified program that could be implemented quickly. The uniqueness of this partnership lies in 
its accelerated six-month structure, allowing students to quickly enter the workforce, along 
with OSF’s direct support in hiring and training. Additionally, an OSF Surgical Technician serves 
as the course instructor, further integrating real-world expertise into the curriculum and 
strengthening the educational experience. To enhance student readiness, OSF collaborated with 
IVCC to integrate a structured, paid training component, allowing students to gain six months 
of real-world experience before transitioning into full-time employment. This collaborative 
approach ensures graduates are well-prepared for the demands of the field, reinforcing the 
program’s effectiveness in developing a skilled workforce for the region. 

The IVCC Board of Trustees wholeheartedly recommends OSF Healthcare for the 2025 
Business/Industry Partnership Award. 

Sincerely, 

Everett Solon 

Board Chair, Illinois Valley Community College 

Information Item 22.1

64



Information Item 22.2

65



Information Item 22.3

66



Information Item 22.4

67



RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2025 

Position To Be Filled: 
Accounting Clerk-Payables/Cashier 

Number of  
Applicants:   13 

Number of Applicants 
Offered an Interview:  3 
invited; 1 declined 

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Eric Johnson, Controller
• Michelle Carboni, Director of Auxiliary Services and Purchasing
• Laurie Polte, Student Services Information Specialist
• Marlene Merkel, Administrative Assistant, Humanities, Fine Arts, Social Sciences
• Sue Harding, Administrative Assistant, Athletics

Applicant Recommended: Susan Weber 

Educational Preparation: 
• St. Bede Academy, Peru, IL - Diploma

Experience: 
• Carus LLC/Alliance Transport, Peru, IL – Accounts Payable Clerk 
• Office Depot/Max, Ottawa, IL – Accounts Payroll
• Handy Foods, Ottawa, IL – Front End Supervisor/Cashier

This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 
• Direct experience in Accounts Payable 
• Demonstrated passion for the role and a wealth of experience in processing payables, as

well as experience with completing 1099’s, and retrieving invoices and reports for yearly
audits

• Knowledge of multiple accounting software systems

Recommended Salary:  $20.81 Effective Date:  03/10/2025 

Mary Beth Herron 
Director of Human Resources 

Information Item 22.5

68



RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2025 

Position To Be Filled: 
Custodian 

Number of  
Applicants: 24 

Number of Applicants 
Interviewed: 4 

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Scott Curley, Director of Facilities
• Gerilynn Schultz, Facilities Supervisor
• Kathy Hart, Dean of Institutional Effectiveness
• Chris Teason, Financial Aid Veterans and Benefits Advisor
• Jaime Avila, Custodian 

Applicant Recommended:  John Bratkovich 

Educational Preparation: 
• Illinois State University, Normal, IL – B.S., Criminal Justice Sciences
• Western Illinois University, Macomb, IL – coursework towards Law Enforcement
• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – A.A., Criminal Justice
• St. Bede Academy, Peru, IL – Diploma

Experience: 
• LaSalle Peru Township High School, LaSalle, IL – Custodian; Custodian Sub 
• 13th Judicial Court District, Ottawa, IL – Bailiff
• Sheridan Correctional Center, Sheridan, IL – Correctional Counselor II; Correctional

Officer

This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 
1. Most qualified candidate with a wide range of custodial experience.
2. Experience with custodial equipment, cleaning, and event set-ups.
3. Worked in a school setting and interviewed well.

Recommended Salary:  $24.62 / hour Effective Date:  03/17/2025 

Mary Beth Herron 
Director of Human Resources 

Information Item 22.6

69



Information Item 22.7 
 

Reappointment of Non-Tenured Faculty for 2025/2026 
 
The administration is pleased to announce the following non-tenured faculty will be 
reappointed for the academic year 2025/2026: 
 
 
• Rebecca Caldwell, Early Childhood Education Instructor 
• Michele Cheshareck, Nursing Instructor 
• Juliana Dzurisin, CNA Instructor / Program Coordinator 
• Kora Jones, Dental Assisting Instructor 
• Greg Whightsil, Industrial Maintenance and Electricity Instructor 

 
 
 
KPI 3:  Support for Students 
KPI 5:  District Population Served 

70



Information Item 22.8 
 

Change Order for CTC Technology Project 
 
The administration wishes to advise the Board of Trustees of a Change Order to the CTC 
Audio-Visual technology upgrades project. Due to changes in “standard” size for Newline 
video displays, our “custom” sized display for CTC124/125 is now considered “standard” 
and the cost for the project has been reduced by $45,324.34: 
 

Previous contract sum   $323,955.37 
 
Change Order-Bollards for TDT poles   ($45,324.34) 
 
New contract sum   $278,631.03 

 
 
 
KPI 6: Resource Management 

71



Information Item 22.9

72



73



Information Item 22.10

74



NAME POSITION DEPARTMENT / DIVISION
STATUS (PT)Part-time; 

(FT)Full-time
Date HR Received Notice 
/ Letter on File (Y) / (N) Effective Reason

Wineberg, Lenore ECE Instructor HFS PT 01/16/2025 (N) Last Day 
Worked 

12/16/2023

Has not worked 
in the last 12 
months

Bias, Tim Manufacturing Technology 
Instructor

WFD PT 01/16/2025 (N) Last Day 
Worked 

12/16/2023

Has not worked 
in the last 12 
months

Huey, Lydia Assistant Coach Women's Soccer ATH PT 02/19/2025 (Y) 2/19/2025 Transferred to 
full-time non-
exempt position

Kumar, Sammy CNA Instructor HLT FT 02/27/2025 (Y) Last Day 
Worked 

03/06/2025

Resignation

Moore, Lynne Enrollment Services Assistant Student Services FT 09/15/2022 (Y) Last Day 
Worked 

02/28/2025

Retirement 
Planning Program

ITEM FOR INFORMATION
SEPARATIONS FROM EMPLOYMENT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES - March 19, 2025

Information Item 22.11

75



  Approved by the Board (01-18-2024) 

 

 
 
 

College Core Values 
Achieving Excellence through our Core Values (acronym is I-CARE) 

Integrity 
Compassion 
Accountability 
Respect 
Equity 

 
 
 
 

Vision Statement 
Illinois Valley Community College will foster personal and professional 
growth and well-being for our students and community through growing 

programs, updated facilities, and educational innovation. 
 
 
 
 

Mission Statement 
Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities for 

students and our community by providing access to affordable, 
high-quality higher education and lifelong learning. 

 
 


	Board Packet Cover (with new branding)
	815 North Orlando Smith Road
	A G E N D A
	NOTE: If you are unable to attend this meeting, or if you have questions regarding


	Board Packet Inside Cover August 2024
	Board Agenda - March 19, 2025
	ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	A G E N D A


	Action Item - Tenure L Beetz
	Tenure Recommendation -- L Beetz March 25
	L Beetz Tenure rec SP25
	Action Item - Tenure S Fox
	Tenure Recommendation -- S Fox March 25
	S Fox Tenure rec SP25
	Audit Finance Committee MINUTES - 2.5.2025
	Dr. Rebholz commented on a great conversation with a former student on her experiences at IVCC.
	Mr. McCracken commented what an outstanding job everyone is doing and it is reflective of getting the right people in positions to make it happen.
	ADJOURNMENT
	Mr. McCracken declared the meeting adjourned at 6:17 p.m.

	Board Minutes - February 19, 2025
	None
	ADJOURNMENT
	Mr. Solon declared the meeting adjourned at 5:55 p.m.
	____________________________    _____________________________ Everett J. Solon, Board Chair     Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary

	Facilities Committee Minutes 3-06-25
	Mr. McCracken declared the meeting adjourned at 6:02 p.m.

	1 - treasurers report cover-NEW branding
	2 - Financial Highlights 02-28-2025
	3 - Combined Balance Sheet 02-28-25
	4 - Summary 02-28-2025
	5 - By Fund 02-28-2025
	6 - Dept Comparison 02-28-2025
	7 - Cash Flows
	8 - Investment Status Report 02-28-2025
	9 - PMA Report
	February 2025

	10 - ISDLAF+ Report
	February 2025

	11 - MBS Report
	February 2025

	12 - Remainder Financial Docs - scanned
	Master Plan 2025-Action Item
	(Action Item) Fox_Amber for Dean of NSB (05-19-2025)
	Fox_Amber Appt Form (2025-05-19)
	(Action Item) Kumar_Sammy Resignation 2025-03-06
	Board Policy Action Item 02.23
	02.23 Residency Requirement DRAFT 03.04.25
	Board Policy Action Item 06.21
	06.21 Non-Discrimination_Anti-Harassment DRAFT for BOT 3.04.2025
	Board Policy Action Item 06.22
	06.22 Prohibiting Sex-Based Misconduct DRAFT 03.04.25
	Board Policy Action Item Remove 06.13
	1 - ICCTA Letter of Support OSF
	2 - ICCTA Letter of Support A. Watkins
	3 - ICCTA Letter of Support S. Whiteaker
	4 - ICCTA Letter of Support D. Leynaud
	5 - Weber_Susan Staff Appt Form (2025-03-10)
	6 - Bratkovich_John Staff Appt Form (2025-03-17)
	7 - 2025_2026 Reappointment of Non-Tenured Faculty
	8 - Change Order - CTC Technology Cost Decrease
	9 - 2025-MOU Tri-County Opportunities Council
	10 - LOU - Heather Seghi
	11 - 2025-03 Employee Separations Report (for printed book)
	Sheet1

	Board Packet Inside Back Cover - Vision, Mission, Goals Revised 01-19-2024



